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days after October 28, 1992. Such rules shall be 
prescribed in accordance with section 553 of title 
5. 

(c) Enforcement 

Any violation of any rule prescribed under 
subsection (a) of this section shall be treated as 
a violation of a rule respecting unfair or decep-
tive acts or practices under section 45 of this 
title. Notwithstanding section 45(a)(2) of this 
title, communications common carriers shall be 
subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission for 
purposes of this subchapter. 

(Pub. L. 102–556, title II, § 201, Oct. 28, 1992, 106 
Stat. 4187.) 

§ 5712. Actions by States 

(a) In general 

Whenever an attorney general of any State 
has reason to believe that the interests of the 
residents of that State have been or are being 
threatened or adversely affected because any 
person has engaged or is engaging in a pattern 
or practice which violates any rule of the Com-
mission under section 5711(a) of this title, the 
State may bring a civil action on behalf of its 
residents in an appropriate district court of the 
United States to enjoin such pattern or practice, 
to enforce compliance with such rule of the 
Commission, to obtain damages on behalf of 
their residents, or to obtain such further and 
other relief as the court may deem appropriate. 

(b) Notice 

The State shall serve prior written notice of 
any civil action under subsection (a) of this sec-
tion upon the Commission and provide the Com-
mission with a copy of its complaint, except 
that if it is not feasible for the State to provide 
such prior notice, the State shall serve such no-
tice immediately upon instituting such action. 
Upon receiving a notice respecting a civil ac-
tion, the Commission shall have the right (1) to 
intervene in such action, (2) upon so interven-
ing, to be heard on all matters arising therein, 
and (3) to file petitions for appeal. 

(c) Venue 

Any civil action brought under this section in 
a district court of the United States may be 
brought in the district wherein the defendant is 
found or is an inhabitant or transacts business 
or wherein the violation occurred or is occur-
ring, and process in such cases may be served in 
any district in which the defendant is an inhab-
itant or wherever the defendant may be found. 

(d) Investigatory powers 

For purposes of bringing any civil action 
under this section, nothing in this chapter shall 
prevent the attorney general from exercising 
the powers conferred on the attorney general by 
the laws of such State to conduct investigations 
or to administer oaths or affirmations or to 
compel the attendance of witnesses or the pro-
duction of documentary and other evidence. 

(e) Effect on State court proceedings 

Nothing contained in this section shall pro-
hibit an authorized State official from proceed-
ing in State court on the basis of an alleged vio-
lation of any general civil or criminal antifraud 
statute of such State. 

(f) Limitation 

Whenever the Commission has instituted a 
civil action for violation of any rule or regula-
tion under this chapter, no State may, during 
the pendency of such action instituted by the 
Commission, subsequently institute a civil ac-
tion against any defendant named in the Com-
mission’s complaint for violation of any rule as 
alleged in the Commission’s complaint. 

(g) Actions by other State officials 

(1) Nothing contained in this section shall pro-
hibit an authorized State official from proceed-
ing in State court on the basis of an alleged vio-
lation of any general civil or criminal statute of 
such State. 

(2) In addition to actions brought by an attor-
ney general of a State under subsection (a) of 
this section, such an action may be brought by 
officers of such State who are authorized by the 
State to bring actions in such State for protec-
tion of consumers and who are designated by the 
Commission to bring an action under subsection 
(a) of this section against persons that the Com-
mission has determined have or are engaged in 
a pattern or practice which violates a rule of the 
Commission under section 5711(a) of this title. 

(Pub. L. 102–556, title II, § 202, Oct. 28, 1992, 106 
Stat. 4190.) 

REFERENCES IN TEXT 

This chapter, referred to in subsecs. (d) and (f), was in 
the original ‘‘this Act’’, meaning Pub. L. 102–556, Oct. 
28, 1992, 106 Stat. 4181, known as the Telephone Disclo-
sure and Dispute Resolution Act. For complete classi-
fication of this Act to the Code, see References in Text 
note set out under section 5701 of this title and Tables. 

§ 5713. Administration and applicability of sub-
chapter 

(a) In general 

Except as otherwise provided in section 5712 of 
this title, this subchapter shall be enforced by 
the Commission under the Federal Trade Com-
mission Act (15 U.S.C. 41 et seq.). Consequently, 
no activity which is outside the jurisdiction of 
that Act shall be affected by this chapter, ex-
cept for purposes of this subchapter. 

(b) Actions by Commission 

The Commission shall prevent any person 
from violating a rule of the Commission under 
section 5711 of this title in the same manner, by 
the same means, and with the same jurisdiction, 
powers, and duties as though all applicable 
terms and provisions of the Federal Trade Com-
mission Act (15 U.S.C. 41 et seq.) were incor-
porated into and made a part of this subchapter. 
Any person who violates such rule shall be sub-
ject to the penalties and entitled to the privi-
leges and immunities provided in the Federal 
Trade Commission Act in the same manner, by 
the same means, and with the same jurisdiction, 
power, and duties as though all applicable terms 
and provisions of the Federal Trade Commission 
Act were incorporated into and made a part of 
this subchapter. 

(Pub. L. 102–556, title II, § 203, Oct. 28, 1992, 106 
Stat. 4191.) 

REFERENCES IN TEXT 

The Federal Trade Commission Act, referred to in 

text, is act Sept. 26, 1914, ch. 311, 38 Stat. 717, as amend-
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